
EAST CONTRA COSTA  

REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Antioch – Brentwood – Contra Costa County – Oakley – Pittsburg 

A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY 

255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA 94553 

 

Board of Directors:       Authority Staff Office: 
  Contra Costa County  
Lamar Thorpe, City of Antioch – Chair  255 Glacier Drive 

       Joel Bryant, City of Brentwood – Vice Chair  Martinez, CA  94553 
       Aaron Meadows, City of Oakley  (925) 313-2000   
       Shanelle Scales-Preston, City of Pittsburg  
       Diane Burgis, Contra Costa County  

 
AGENDA 

Board of Directors 
 

Thursday, August 8, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

Tri-Delta Transit Meeting Room 
801 Wilbur Avenue 
Antioch, California 

 
This is an in-person meeting of the Board of Directors with the option for members of 
the public to appear in person or to participate via Zoom teleconference.  Persons who 
wish to address the Board during public comment or with respect to an item on the 
agenda may comment in person or may call in or log in to the meeting via Zoom.   
 

To participate by phone, dial +1 669 444 9171 US.  
The meeting ID is 962 0052 1926 Passcode: 280296 

To participate online using Zoom, hold down CTRL + click the following:  
Join Zoom Meeting Here   

Meeting ID: 962 0052 1926 Passcode: 280296 
 

Public comments will generally be limited to two minutes.  The Board Chair may reduce 

the amount of time allotted for each public comment at the beginning of each item or 

public comment period depending on the number of comments and the business of the 

day. Your patience is appreciated.  A break may be called at the discretion of the Board 

Chair.  At the discretion of the Board Chair, agenda items may be considered out of order.  

If the Zoom connection malfunctions for any reason, the meeting may be paused while a 

fix is attempted. If the connection is not reestablished, the Board will continue the meeting 

in person without remote access. 

To obtain a copy of a staff report or other written materials related to an open session 

item on the agenda, please contact Dale Dennis by email to 

Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us, or by phone at (925) 595-4587.  

  

https://zoom.us/j/96200521926?pwd=2CPZ9uDKSjGsd8aZDxTTtb1aorwQMg.1
mailto:Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us


EAST CONTRA COSTA  

REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Antioch – Brentwood – Contra Costa County – Oakley – Pittsburg 

A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY 

255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA 94553 

 

Board of Directors:       Authority Staff Office: 
  Contra Costa County  
Lamar Thorpe, City of Antioch – Chair  255 Glacier Drive 

       Joel Bryant, City of Brentwood – Vice Chair  Martinez, CA  94553 
       Aaron Meadows, City of Oakley  (925) 313-2000   
       Shanelle Scales-Preston, City of Pittsburg  
       Diane Burgis, Contra Costa County  

 
Agenda 

August 8, 2024 
 

1. Call to Order  

2. Public Comment 

3. Consent Items 

A. APPROVE minutes of the June 13, 2024, meeting (July 2024 meeting 
cancelled). 
 

B. RECEIVE staff report from Stephen Kowalewski, Chief Deputy Director, 
Contra Costa County Public Works Department, regarding the Authority’s 
contract with PDM Group, Inc., for Program Management Services.   
 

4. Determination 
 
A. ADOPT ECCRFFA Resolution 2024/02 – Approving a revised ECCRFFA  

Fifth Amendment to the ECCRFFA Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement that 
prioritizes two projects in the City of Pittsburg as Third Priority projects in lieu 
of the James Donlon Extension project, adds 18 new projects to the 
ECCRFFA project list consistent with the 2024 Program Update approved on 
June 13, 2024, and directs taking related actions; and APPROVE an updated 
August 2024 ECCRFFA Strategic Plan reflecting the new project prioritization. 

 
5. Boardmember Comments 

6. Adjournment 

The Authority will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to attend Board 
meetings who contact the Staff at least 24 hours before the meeting, at (925) 595-4587. Any disclosable public 
records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the East Contra Costa 
Regional Fee and Financing Authority to a majority of members of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to 
that meeting are available for public inspection at the meeting location and at 255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA during 
normal business hours.  To obtain a copy of any such materials by email after the meeting, please contract Dale 
Dennis at Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us.   

mailto:Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us


 

 

EAST CONTRA COSTA  
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Antioch - Brentwood - Oakley - Pittsburg and Contra Costa County 
 

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY 
 

June 13, 2024 
 
 

The regular meeting of the EAST CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING 
AUTHORITY (ECCRFFA) was convened as an in-person meeting with the option for 
members of the public to appear in person or to participate via Zoom teleconference.  
Members of the public were permitted to participate in the meeting online, or by telephone, 
and in lieu of making public comments at the meeting, members of the public could submit 
public comments before or during the meeting through Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order by Chair Lamar Thorpe at 7:20 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Diane Burgis (Contra Costa County), Aaron Meadows (Oakley), Juan 

Banales, Alternate for Shanelle Scales-Preston (Pittsburg), and Chair 
Lamar Thorpe (Antioch)  

 
ABSENT: Vice Chair Joel Bryant (Brentwood) 
 
STAFF: Dale Dennis, Program Manager 
 Stephen Siptroth, Assistant County Counsel 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. HEARING to consider adopting Resolution No. 2024/01, approving a nexus study to 

update the Regional Transportation Demand Impact Mitigation (RTDIM) fee program 
to add 18 new projects to the ECCRFFA fee program, recommending ECCRFFA 
member agencies approve a Fifth Amendment to the ECCRFFA Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement and updates to their fee ordinances, and taking related actions, 
with no change to current RTDIM fees. 
 

Program Manager Dale Dennis recommended that the Chair open the public hearing, give 
a brief presentation, accept comments from the public, and close the public hearing. 
 
Chair Thorpe OPENED the public hearing. 

mailto:Dale.Dennis@pw.cccounty.us


ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Mr. Dennis presented the Draft Final Report for the East County RTDIM fee program update.   
 
Julie Morgan, Fehr & Peers, reported the firm had been developing the fee program update.  
The RTDIM had been in place for 30 years since 1994, and had been used for a wide range 
of transportation improvements such as the SR4 Bypass.  The last comprehensive update 
had been in 2005, and there had been a targeted update in 2020, specifically to add the 
Sand Creek Road Extension project to the ECCRFFA fee program.  Fehr & Peers had been 
working to assess the current program to see how it had been working as well as the status 
and progress of the projects in the program.  Following the Board’s direction, Fehr & Peers 
had conducted a comprehensive update.   
 
As part of that update, Ms. Morgan explained that Fehr & Peers had looked at the 15 projects 
in the fee program, the amount of growth that had happened in East County, the amount of 
fee revenue collected, and she had compared that data to the projections from previous 
studies.  She reported that the program had made progress to attract funds from other 
sources, which had been used to deliver projects in the fee program.  The program was on 
track with the expectations of the previous nexus study.   
 
For the nexus study update itself, Ms. Morgan reported that time had been spent working 
with the member agencies and staff to identify capital projects that should be included in an 
updated program.  She presented a list of projects that met all those criteria.  The nexus 
study included a summary and a map of the area to identify the location of the proposed 
new projects. 
 
Ms. Morgan stated the nexus study evaluation confirmed the descriptions and estimated 
costs of the projects.  Each project had been reviewed for existing deficiencies, and traffic 
modeling had been conducted to determine how each of the proposed projects would 
service the traffic demand from new development in ECCRFFA’s jurisdiction. 
 
The conclusion was that the report supported the addition of 18 new projects to the program.  
She recommended approval of the nexus study. 
 
Mr. Dennis advised that upon completion of and the closing of the public hearing, the Board 
was to ADOPT Resolution 2024/01, to:  
 
 MAKE the findings set forth in the resolution;  
 

APPROVE the May 2024 Draft East Contra Costa Regional Fee Program Update 
that adds 18 new projects into the ECCRFFA Fee Program;  
 
APPROVE a Fifth Amendment to the JEPA for ECCRFFA to add the 18 new projects 
to the ECCRFFA project list, remove the existing project prioritization, and make 
other technical changes;  
 



ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

 

RECOMMEND that each member agency consider and approve the Fifth 
Amendment to the JEPA for ECCRFFA, which would be effective upon the approval 
of all member agencies;  
 
APPROVE maintaining the RTDIM fee rates established in the 2005 ECCRFFA  Fee 
Program Update subject to increases based on changes in the Construction Cost 
Index, in conjunction with the 15 percent rebate that had been extended through 
December 31, 2025 at the ECCRFFA Board Meeting on December 14, 2023, and 
any future fee rebates approved by the Board; and  
 
RECOMMEND that each member agency amend its ECCRFFA fee ordinance or 
resolution to incorporate the new projects among ECCRFFA projects that would be 
funded with RTDIM fees. 

 
Mr. Dennis also advised that the Board would have to DIRECT the Program Manager to 
work with the member agencies to take steps necessary to approve the Fifth Amendment 
to the JEPA for ECCRFFA and to amend fee ordinances or resolution to add the 18 new 
projects into the list of projects to be funded with RTDIM fee revenues, with no change to 
the RTDIM fee rates, and to ACKNOWLEDGE the ECCRFFA Fee Program shortfall 
described in the 2024 Program Update. 
 
Bruce ‘Ole’ Ohlson, a resident of Pittsburg, stated the East County bicycle community had 
a couple of concerns with the project list.  He stated bicyclists expected that new roads 
would get bicycle lanes on the shoulders, although some of the projects listed adjustments 
to existing roads.  He emphasized that routes of regional significance for motorists were also 
important to bicyclists.  He noted that the update to roads parallel to Highway 4 and several 
of the projects had indicated changes from two lanes to four lanes and the bicycle 
community wanted to be ensured that space for bicycles, pedestrians, and all transportation 
would be included in the projects.   
 
Mr. Ohlson added that some of the projects listed established connections from East County 
to other areas, primarily Central County, but also to Highway 239, and he stated the bicycle 
community expected to be included in some kind of bicycle list.  For projects related to Marsh 
Creek Road and parts of Clayton, he asked if those projects would be expanded in width to 
include bike lanes.  With respect to the truck climbing lane on Willow Pass Road, he stated 
bicyclists expected a nice wide shoulder in that area.  For Bailey Road improvements, City 
of Pittsburg to the city limits, he expected that bike lanes would be included given the 
connection from East County to Central County.  On Standard Oil Avenue, he stated the 
houses on each side of that street had been built pretty close and he proposed that bike 
lanes or Class IV facilities on one side of the street be provided.  He added that the East 
County bicycle community looked forward to the connection. 
 
There being no one else to speak, Chair Thorpe CLOSED the public hearing. 
 



ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Director Banales stated that Pittsburg had concerns with the fee program update regarding 
prioritization of new projects in lieu of the James Donlon Extension project and 
recommended continuing the item to the next meeting until those concerns could be worked 
out.  He wanted to make sure that the substitute projects would be prioritized to the same 
extent as the James Donlon Extension project. 
 
Mr. Dennis reported that City of Pittsburg staff had proposed to submit substitute projects 
and while he hoped that information would have been submitted at this meeting, he 
expected the City of Pittsburg to be ready to move forward at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Dennis recommended getting input from the City of Pittsburg and continuing the item to 
a special meeting to avoid the need to wait until August given that the regular July meeting 
(July 11) had been cancelled due to a conflict with the Mayors’ Conference. 
 
Director Burgis wanted to move the item forward given the need to follow-through with the 
program update.  She emphasized that the agencies intended to honor commitments to 
Pittsburg, but the nexus study needed to be adopted so that progress could be made and 
so that the funds could be put to their best use sooner rather than later.  She did not want 
projects to be delayed. 
 
Director Banales stated that Pittsburg wanted the best projects to be selected.  He 
apologized for any delays but wanted to make sure that everyone understood the City’s 
priorities and he wanted something in writing as a guarantee that the substitute projects in 
Pittsburg would be prioritized to the same extent as the James Donlon Extension. 
 
Mr. Dennis noted that the action could be continued to the August Board meeting but the 
sooner the nexus study was approved the sooner ECCRFFA fee revenue could be 
committed to the new projects added to the program.  He explained it may take time for 
each agency to adopt the necessary documentation to approve the JEPA amendment.  
 
Stephen Siptroth, Assistant County Counsel and Authority counsel, clarified that the 
resolution, even if adopted at this time, would not become effective until it had been 
approved by all the member agencies, so if Pittsburg would not sign the Agreement in the 
current form, no time would be saved through the adoption of the Agreement at this time.   
A new agreement addressing Pittsburg’s concerns would need to be brought back. 
 
The different ways to prioritize projects either in the JEPA or through the strategic planning 
process were noted with the understanding that there were different ways to approach the 
issue.  The impacts of a delay and how a delay would affect projects were noted. 
 
As to when Pittsburg would be ready, it was explained that the Pittsburg City Council would 
discuss proposed changes to the Fifth Amendment to the JPA, with the Pittsburg City 
Attorney in closed session on July 1, and information from Pittsburg could conceivably be 
available to ECCRFFA staff on or about July 2. 



ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 

 

Director Burgis supported a special meeting the first week of July to approve the nexus study; 
however, a special meeting was not set. 
 

On motion by Director Burgis, seconded by Director Meadows, the Authority adopted the 
staff recommendation as identified at the meeting and as shown in the staff report dated 
June 13, 2024, with the added statement that the Board recognized the concern expressed 
by Pittsburg and that there was absolutely no intention of taking anything away from 
Pittsburg, carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Burgis, Meadows, Thorpe  
NOES: Banales 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
On motion by Director Meadows, seconded by Director Burgis, the Authority adopted the 
Consent Calendar with the removal of Item D for discussion.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
A. APPROVED minutes of the April 11, 2024 meeting (May 2024 meeting cancelled). 

 
B. APPROVED Fiscal Year 2023/24 End of Year Budget. 

 
C. APPROVED Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget. 

 
D. [REMOVED FROM CONSENT AND NOT INCLUDED IN MOTION]  APPROVE an amendment 

to the Consulting Services Agreement between the Authority and PDM Group, Inc., 
to increase the payment limit by $194,688, to a new payment limit of $2,255,391, and 
to extend the termination date from June 30, 2024 to a new termination date of June 
30, 2025, for continued Program Manager services, and AUTHORIZE the Secretary, 
or designee, to execute the amendment on behalf of the Authority.  

 
E. APPROVED an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement between the 

Authority and Fehr & Peers, to increase the payment limit by $40,000 from $290,500, 
to a new payment limit of $330,550, and to extend the termination date from June 
30, 2024, to a new termination date of June 30, 2025, to prepare the nexus study 
and provide technical support. 
 

F. APPROVED an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement between the 
Authority and L. Lucy Owens, to increase the payment limit by $72,000, from 
$199,900, to a new payment limit of $271,900, and to extend the termination date 
from June 30, 2024, to a new termination date of June 30, 2025, to provide right-of-
way services and staff support to the Program Manager. 



ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 6 
 
 

 

G. APPROVED amendment to agreement with Anita L. Tucci-Smith – Minute Taking 
Services for the Authority, to extend the termination date from June 30, 2024, to a 
new termination date of June 30, 2025, with no change in payment limit. 

 
AYES:  Banales, Burgis, Meadows, Thorpe  
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant 
 
The following item, Item D, was removed from Consent for discussion. 
 

APPROVE an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement between the 
Authority and PDM Group, Inc., to increase the payment limit by $194,688, to a new 
payment limit of $2,255,391, and to extend the termination date from June 30, 2024 
to a new termination date of June 30, 2025, for continued Program Manager services, 
and AUTHORIZE the Secretary, or designee, to execute the amendment on behalf 
of the Authority 

 
Stephen Kowalewski, Chief Deputy Director, Contra Costa County Public Works 
Department, ECCRFFA’s Secretary Designee, stated the department was responsible to 
provide staff to both ECCRFFA and the State Route 4 Bypass Authority, and had hired Dale 
Dennis a number of years ago through a contract that had been extended several times, the 
most recent of which would expire on June 30, 2024.  The recommendation was to extend 
the contract an additional year, through June 30, 2025, for Program Manager services for 
ECCRFFA.  He reported that Mr. Dennis had done an outstanding job managing the 
program, managing projects, and coordinating efforts with the Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority (CCTA). 
 
Director Burgis suggested there needed to be information in the staff report to identify the 
length of the contract and to offer more information on the history of the contract. 
 
Mr. Kowalewski stated he could provide the proposal and rate sheet but noted that bringing 
in someone new at this point would be an additional expense to ECCRFFA, while having  
Mr. Dennis continue would be an efficient option for the Board to consider.  He noted there 
was an escalator limiting changes in the hourly rates.  At one point in the past, after Mr. 
Dennis’s contract was not renewed, Public Works staff had to look for other program 
manager services and had not received a lot of interest.  At that time, it was determined not 
to pursue the candidates who had applied, and he had been the Interim Program Manager 
at that time.  A year later, Mr. Dennis agreed to enter into a new contract with ECCRFFA to 
provide Program Manager services. 
 
Mr. Kowalewski also clarified that the contract covered not only Mr. Dennis but also Nancy 
Wein, who supported ECCRFFA. 
 



ECCRFFA Minutes 
June 13, 2024 
Page 7 
 
 

 

Director Burgis explained that she had expected a more in-depth staff report.  She 
recognized that Mr. Dennis was well respected and she appreciated the work he did but, 
she needed a brief history of the contract that would expire on June 30, 2024. 
 
On motion by Director Burgis, seconded by Director Meadows, the Authority APPROVED 
an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement between the Authority and PDM 
Group, Inc., to increase the payment limit by $194,688, to a new payment limit of 
$2,255,391, and to extend the termination date from June 30, 2024 to a new termination 
date of June 30, 2025, for continued Program Manager services, and AUTHORIZED the 
Secretary, or designee, to execute the amendment on behalf of the Authority, and directed 
that a more in-depth staff report about the contract and its history be submitted to the Board 
at its next meeting, carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Banales, Burgis, Meadows Thorpe  
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant 
 
DETERMINATION 
 
There were no determination items. 
 
BOARDMEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Boardmember comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Thorpe adjourned the meeting of the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing 
Authority at 8:02 P.M. to Thursday, August 8, 2024, at 6:30 P.M. or other day/time deemed 
appropriate. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anita L. Tucci-Smith 
Minutes Clerk 
 



 
EAST CONTRA COSTA 

REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY 
 
 DATE:  August 8, 2024 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Stephen Kowalewski, Contra Costa County Chief Deputy Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE staff report from Stephen Kowalewski, Chief Deputy Director, Contra 

Costa County Public Works Department, regarding the Authority’s contract with PDM 
Group, Inc., for ECCRFFA Program Management services.   

 
 

 

 
 

ACTION OF BOARD ON  ________________________ APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED         OTHER   
 
VOTE OF DIRECTORS 
_____      UNANIMOUS (ABSENT                              ) 

AYES:                       NOES:    

ABSENT:                  ABSTAIN:                     I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of 
an action taken and entered on the minutes of the 
Board of Directors on the date shown. 

 
ATTESTED  

 Secretary to the Authority 

 

Recommendation:  RECEIVE staff report from Stephen Kowalewski, Chief Deputy Director, 
Contra Costa County Public Works Department, regarding the Authority’s contract with PDM 
Group, Inc., for ECCRFFA Program Management services.   
 
Discussion: 

In June, the Board approved an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement for PDM Group, 
Inc., to provide continued Program Management services for ECCRFFA through FY2024-25, but 
directed County staff to provide a staff report to the Board at its next meeting regarding the length 
of the contract and its history.  The purpose of this staff report is to provide the Board the 
information requested. 
 
Contract History. The Authority entered into the current contract with PDM Group Inc. effective 
March 19, 2013.  Subsequently, amendments were approved and executed with PDM Group Inc. 
as follows: July 1, 2016; April 18, 2018; February 13, 2020; March 11, 2021; and June 8, 2023. 
These amendments provided for continued Program Manager services through Fiscal Year 2023-
24, and the last amendment approved in June extends the contract through FY 2024-25.   
 
Contract Approval Process. Prior to each Amendment, the following process is implemented.   
PDM submits a scope of services and proposed rate sheet.  The Secretary Designee from Contra 
Costa County Public Works reaches out to each Public Works Director from each member agency 
and provides a copy of the scope of services and rate sheet.  Each member agency is asked to 
check with their elected representative on the Board if there are any concerns with the proposed 
amendment.  (The Public Works Directors and elected representatives do not communicate among 



East Contra Costa Fee and Financing Authority Board meeting  
Agenda – August 8, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 

C:\Users\skowalew\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\0L79QAMS\DRAFT ECCRFFA Staff Report  PDM Group 
Contract Summary - sk sms (003).doc 

themselves.) Finally, staff adds the item to the agenda for consideration by the ECCRFFA and 
SR4BA Boards. 
 
Contractor Services. Under the contract, Program Manager Services are provided by Dale Dennis. 
Historically, staff support was provided by County staff, primarily Nancy Wein, through June 2022.  
In June 2022, Nancy Wein retired from the County and joined PDM Group, Inc.  For FY 2022-23, 
PDM Group Inc. provided Program Management Services, with Dale Dennis serving as the 
Program Manager and Nancy Wein providing staff support.  This continued in FY2023-24.  For FY 
2024-25, PDM Group Inc. will continue to provide Program Management Services, with Dale 
Dennis serving as the Program Manager and Nancy Wein continuing to provide staff support.  
Attached is the Scope of Services and Fee Proposal for the June 2024 Amendment. 
 

Review of Hourly Rates.  While this contract is for specialized services and does not need to be 
awarded to the lowest-cost service provider, County staff actively review rates charged by PDM 
Group, Inc. and compare them to known rates charged by firms, like Mark Thomas, Fehr & Peers, 
WSP, other Consultants, and the County, which have professionals with qualifications similar to 
those of the PDM Group, Inc. professionals.  The hourly rates charged by PDM Group, Inc. fall 
within the ranges of hourly charge rates for other firms, consultants, and the County. Historically, 
PDM Group Inc. used County support staff at a fully burdened rate (base/overhead/benefits) of 
$368.55 (recent rate). The arrangement to have PDM Group Inc. provide support staff services 
resulted from lack of County staffing resources to perform the services and a competitive rate in 
comparison to County fully-burdened rates. Rates are also provided to all member agency Public 
Works Directors to review and approve for reasonableness prior to contracts appearing before the 
ECCRFFA and SR4BA Boards. See rate comparison table below. 

 
Staff Report Language. Typically for contract amendments, it is common practice in staff reports to 
identify the amount of the current amendment and the total authorized amount from original 
approval of the contract. The large dollar amount in the recent amendment was the total authorized 
amount since March 19, 2013, when the contract was first entered into. 

Firm/Consultant Position Rate 

ECCRFFA/SR4BA Program Manager $300.00/hr 

Senior Civil Engineer $248.00/hr 

County Division Manager $449.33/hr 

Senior Civil Engineer $268.55/hr 

Firm 1 Principal $280-$400 

Senior Engineer/Planner $180-$235 

Firm 2 Division Manager $290-420 

Senior Project Engineer $210-$300 

Firm 3 Construction Manager $428.62 

Lead Civil Engineer $260.13 

Consultant 1 Project Manager $330.39 

Consultant 2 Project Manager $309.00 

Consultant 3 Project Manager $308.34 



APPENDIX A 
 

Program Management Services 

East County Regional Fee and Financing Authority (ECCRFFA) 

Scope of Services 

OBJECTIVE: PDM Group Inc. will be providing Program Management Services for the East 
County Regional Fee and Financing Authority (ECCRFFA). Dale Dennis will hold the position 
of Program Manager and Nancy Wein will be providing support.  The Program Manager has 
overall responsibility for the day-to-day administrative operations of the ECCRFFA and will 
manage and or oversee or coordinate the delivery of transportation projects in the ECCRFFA 
Program.   

Typical duties and responsibilities include: 

 Interface with the ECCRFFA Board of Directors;  
 Staff the ECCRFFA Board Meetings and be responsible for preparation of Agenda 

Packets for the monthly or periodic meetings;  
 Complete the preparation and implementation of a comprehensive nexus study update for 

the ECCRFFA Fee Program; 
 Prepare annual budgets and schedules for ECCRFFA activities; 
 Work with the member agencies and the Board to establish new project priorities; 
 Review proposed project budgets and schedules from sponsors; 
 Prepare and implement updated Strategic Plan; 
 Prepare Cooperative Agreements and Funding Resolutions for the new priority projects; 
 Oversee a multimillion-dollar transportation program fund; 
 Prepare and distribute ECCRFFA Fee Schedule annually; 
 Prepare of annual AB 1600 Report; 
 Manage preparation and implementation of new ECCRFFA policies, as appropriate; 
 Address questions on ECCRFFA policies and implementation of the Regional 

Transportation Development Impact Mitigation (RTDIM) Fee Program; 
 Manage and oversee the preparation of periodic ECCRFFA Fee Program Assessments; 
 Manage and oversee the ongoing operation and maintenance of the ECCRFFA website; 
 Participate in the overall planning for the East County Transportation projects; 
 Prepare and present written and oral reports related to East County transportation 

projects; 
 Coordinate and oversee the delivery of transportation projects in the ECCRFFA Program 

through project sponsors; 
 Ensure that contractual obligations, ordinances, safety procedures, budgets and policies 

related to transportation projects and ECCRFFA policies are met; 
 Confer with officials, member agency staff, contractors, and others involved in major 

transportation projects; 
 Assist sponsors with interviewing and selecting consultants and contractors as 

appropriate; 
 Ensure payment requests are handled according to JEPA policies and procedures; 

 



APPENDIX A 
 

 
 Manage consultant contracts as appropriate and process contract amendments and 

invoices, etc. 
 Coordinate with Contra Costa Transportation Authority on the SR4 Balfour Road 

Interchange Project and the Mokelumne Bicycle/Pedestrian Overcrossing Projects and 
review and process invoices as required. 

 Coordinate with TRANSPLAN staff as necessary. 
 
Staff Assistance: 

 Staff assistance would be provided by Contra Costa County Public Works and Lucy 
Owens. 

 



FY 24/25 FY 24/25

Staff
Hours/Year Charge Rates Amount

Dale Dennis 10 520                              300$                            156,000$                 

Nancy Wein 3 156                              248$                            38,688$                   

Total 194,688$                 

Note: Rates are increased by 3% each year.

Average 
Hours/Week

Program Manager and Support Services
for the 

East Contra Costa Fee and Financing Authority (ECCRFFA)

Period: June 13, 2024 through June 30, 2025

May 26, 2024















































  

65 Civic Avenue 
Pittsburg, CA 94565 
P: (925) 252-6900 
F: (925) 252-4814 

pittsburgca.gov 
 

 
 

 

August 2, 2024 

 

Dale Dennis 
Sent via email 
 

Dear Mr. Dennis, 

On behalf of the City Council of the City of Pittsburg, we are requesting that the East Contra 
Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority (ECCRFFA) substitute the Third Priority project in 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, James Donlon Extension Project, with the following 
projects; 

• West Leland Road – Extend as a 4-lane arterial, Santa Teresa Drive to Avila Road (up to 
$33.5 million). 

• Pittsburg-Antioch Highway – Widen to 4 lanes, Loveridge Road to Eastern City of 
Pittsburg Limits (up to $38 million). 

This request is being made due to the increase in construction cost for the James Donlon 
Extension Project. This substitution will allow City staff to proceed with the design and 
construction of these substitute projects and clear the way for other projects in the ECCRFFA 
program to proceed. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

John Samuelson 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

CC: City Council 
 Garrett Evans, City Manager 



Attachment 3 

 

 

 

 

Updated August 2024  

ECCRFFA Strategic Plan 



                                                                                                     

AUGUST 2024 ECCRFFA STRATEGIC PLAN
$ thousands

Year of Expenditure (YOE) Dollars         DRAFT 08/08/2024

Prior Years FY 2024/25 FY 2025/26 FY 2026/27 FY 2027/28 FY 2028/29 TOTAL

REVENUE

ECCRFFA Fees $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000

Proj # PROGRAMMED PROJECTS Prior Years FY 2024/25 FY 2025/26 FY 2026/27 FY 2027/28 FY 2028/29 TOTAL

BART - East Contra Costa Rail Extension

26 eBART - Extension Beyond Hillcrest Avenue $0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000

Subtotal $0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000

East County Corridors - Vasco Rd, SR4 Bypass, Byron Highway, Non Freeway SR4

4 Balfour Rd I/C $28,700 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,000

Subtotal $28,700 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,000

Major Streets, Traffic Flow and Safety Improvements

12 Pittsburg-Antioch Highway (Antioch Segment) $0 $38,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,000

17 West Leland Road Extension $0 $33,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $33,500

27 Sand Creek Extension Project $5,234 $7,266 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,500

Subtotal $5,234 $78,766 $0 $0 $0 $0 $84,000

Transporation for Livable Communities

3 Mokelumne Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian Overcrossing $2,950 $50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000

Subtotal $2,950 $50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000

TOTAL ALL PROJECTS $36,884 $82,116 $0 $0 $0 $0 $121,766

ANNUAL ECCRFFA SHORTFALL (-) / SURPLUS (+) ($67,116) $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000

CUMULATIVE ECCRFFA SHORTFALL (-) / SURPLUS (+) $131,000 $63,884 $78,884 $93,884 $108,884 $123,884

NOTE: $71.5M is programmed / reserved for Project 15 (Pittsburgh-Antioch Highway (Antioch Segment) and Project 16 (West Leland Road Extension), which then allows other ECCRFFA 
Projects to be programmed and implemented.


	Thursday, August 8, 2024

